Questions in Response to AF EIM Notice to Industry 2-3-04

1.  A number of questions have been submitted concerning the industry day notice posted on    3Feb04.  The following are the questions with the Government response.

a. Second Acquisition: Each implementation or instantiation of EIM will require integration due to differences in the servers, network, security, and existing applications. A second acquisition subtracts the very purpose of the integrator’s initial bid; to have the business associated with follow-on instantiations of EIM.  Will the “integrator” who wins the initial software contract be allowed to bid on the second acquisition?  It is also not clear how the business model for the initial procurement will operate, especially within the context of an existing GSA schedule 70 framework (see other questions below on this specific issue).

ANSWER:  Yes, the winner of the software contract will be allowed to bid on the second acquisition.

b. NAICS code: We believe, under the type of procurement specified, the NAICS code chosen is extremely restrictive and will limit programmatic success. There are many small-to-large business integrators and large business software manufacturer OEMs who would qualify to perform this requirement should the NAICS codes be waived or enhanced. Will you waive the NAICS code requirement? As an alternative, we respectfully request that the Government add the NAICS codes of 517110 and 517310 to the current list of applicable small business NAICS codes, allowing for 1500 employee size standard companies with sound financial basis to support the small business requirements. Will you add these additional NAICS codes?

ANSWER:  We cannot waive a NAICS code requirement.  We have reviewed the NAICS codes that you identified above, and have determined that they are not appropriate for this acquisition.  However, we will expand the NAICS codes to include NAIC 541512 Computer Systems Design Services and 541511 Custom Computer Programming Services.  The size standard for these codes is $21,000,000 for the three most recent completed fiscal years.     

c. CONUS and OCONUS: If no GSA OCONUS rates are listed, can the CONUS rates be used for OCONUS rates?

ANSWER:  If OCONUS rates are not available, an offeror may choose to perform the effort using CONUS rates.  

d. Content Management: At one time, Content Management was expected as a government defined product suite (e.g. similar to IMT, PureEdge), with a procurement that seemed to be in the works. Is Content Management now included into EIM as a product to be offered by the bidder?

ANSWER:  Content Management was originally considered for a separate acquisition.  Content Management is now included in the program requirements and is expected to be part f the integrated product set.  
e. Procurement Type:  It appears that using the FAR Part 8 procedures for BPAs derived from GSA schedules; and, using the small business size standards contained in NAICS Code 541519, Other Computer Related Services; the Prime small business contractor would need to have the appropriate product(s) already on their GSA schedule (which was also specifically awarded/certified under that same NAICS Code) as a certified reseller/regular dealer; or, use products which are already on the various product vendor’s GSA schedule which also has been awarded/certified as a SB under the same NAICS code. Is this a correct interpretation? Please explain.
ANSWER:  Yes, the small business contractor will need to have the appropriate product(s) already on their GSA schedule as a small business certified reseller/regular dealer, or use products which are already on the vendor’s GSA schedule which also have been awarded/certified as a small business.  One purpose of notifying industry of this information in the FedBizOps was to allow industry time to place the products on a GSA schedule. 

f.
Procurement Type: It appears that the initial contract award contemplated is for the software itself and not integration services (see question 1 above) as indicated by the government statement of procurement purpose “The Air Force is looking for an integrated software suite(s) of Commercial Off the Shelf (COTS) products/solutions for an EIM capability.  This solution can be made up of one or more software products that can support the EIM objective”. Therefore, software vendor(s) have to meet the SB requirements of the procurement as do any “integrator” who would be bidding their software as part of the integrated suite since any integration services provided are incidental to the performance of the original contract.  Is this a correct interpretation? Please explain.

ANSWER:  Yes, the initial contract award contemplated is for the software and GSCC-AF IF integration and not for integration services.  

g. Procurement Type: We are unsure of the rationale as to why the government has chosen this form of contract vehicle approach for accomplishment of this procurement.  It would seem to limit the choices, capabilities, values, and measures of success that the government would realize from any resultant vendor.  We are unaware of any small business vendor qualifying under the planned NAICS codes who already offers the appropriate integrated suite or “best-of breed” suite anticipated by this procurement; and, we are also unaware of appropriate software product vendors who would meet the NAICS standards as well.  There certainly are small businesses who qualify and are “regular dealers” in the types of software anticipated by this procurement and who could potentially qualify as a successful prime reseller for this effort, but they would qualify only under procurement standards different than the GSA schedule based FAR part 8 BPAs specified in this document.  In all fairness, we would encourage the government to go with full and open competition, and eliminate the second acquisition by merging it with the initial acquisition. We believe this will challenge the most capable companies and provide a quality solution for a highly strategic requirement.  

ANSWER:  The Government anticipates that Small Business may have to utilize more than one software package in order to provide the “best-of-breed”.  The Government is interested in the best value approach.  How you decide to accomplish that is part of your strategy in replying to the RFQ.  It is also acceptable for a small business to utilize large business products in your solution.  The NAICS code would not change regardless of the type of acquisition.

h. Procurement Type: We were briefed by some MSG officials that the appropriate “business model” for this procurement was for the Prime vendor/integrator to build into his software prices or license fees an amount(s) to cover expenses to accomplish GCSS compliance, integration, any selling fees, profit, etc… They advised there would be no opportunities to provide other integration services except for a bare minimum to install and test products at the HAF and 1st MAJCOM site. Is this business model still the desired model, given the procurement method anticipated by the government? Please explain.

ANSWER:  Yes, this business model is the desired model.

2.  All questions concerning this acquisition must come through the contracting office, to either shelley.Johnson@wpafb.af.mil or timothy.Hannah@wpafb.af.mil.

Timothy H. Hannah

Contracting Officer

